

AUDIO CENTRALIZER WITH STEREO MATRIXING

AC-AEX-RC-HUB

User Manual

CONTENTS

Contents	2
Important Safety Instructions	4
Introduction	6
Compatible Devices	6
AC-AEX-T	6
Product Overview	7
Box Contents	7
Technical Specifications	7
Front and Rear Panels	8
Installation	9
Rack Mounts	9
Mounting Feet Assembly	9
Grounding Cable	
Front Panel Control	
View Input/Output Mapping	
Configure Mode	
Wiring and Connections	
Audio Connections	
RS-232 Control	
LAN Wiring	
Initial Setup	
Connecting the Devices	
Locating the IP Address	
Accessing the Web UI	14
OTA Cloud Services	
Navigating the Web UI	
Matrix	
Matrix Switching	
I/O Config	
Stereo Audio Input Settings	
Stereo Audio Output Settings	
Output Following	
Audio Configuration	



System	
IP Settings	
IP Control	
Admin Web Interface	
User Web Interface	
Cloud Services	
Hardware	
Console	
Command List	
Troubleshooting	
Maintenance	
Damage Requiring Service	
Support	
Warranty	
The Basics	
Coverage Details	
Red Tape	
Obtaining an RMA	
Shipping	
Limitation on Liability	
Exclusive Remedy	



IMPORTANT SAFETY INSTRUCTIONS

Before installing, configuring, and operating the devices and other vendor equipment, AVPro Edge recommends that each dealer, integrator, installer, and all other necessary personnel access and read all the required technical documentation, which can be located by visiting <u>AVProEdge.com</u>.

Read and understand all safety instructions, cautions, and warnings in this document and the labels on the equipment.

	NOTE:	Provides special information for installing, configuring, and operating the devices.
-`Ų́-	TIP:	Provides suggestions and considerations for installing, configuring, and operating the devices.
\triangle	IMPORTANT:	Provides special information that is critical for installing, configuring, and operating the equipment.
Ŵ	CAUTION:	Provides special information for avoiding situations that may cause damage to the devices.
\triangle	WARNING:	Provides special information for avoiding situations that may cause physical danger to the installer, end user, etc.

Safety Classifications in this Document

Electrical Shock Prevention

ELECTRIC SHOCK:

The source power poses an electrical shock hazard that can potentially cause serious injury to installers and end users.

ELECTRICAL DISCONNECT:

The source power outlet and power supply input power sockets should be easily accessible to disconnect power in the event of an electrical hazard or malfunction.

Weight Injury Prevention

WEIGHT INJURY:

Installing some of the MXNet devices requires two installers to ensure safe handling during installation. Failure to use two installers may result in injury.



Safety Statements

Follow all of the safety instructions listed below and apply them accordingly. Additional safety information will be included where applicable.

- 1. Read these instructions.
- 2. Keep these instructions.
- 3. Heed all warnings.
- 4. Follow all instructions.
- 5. Do not use these devices near water.
- 6. Clean only with a dry cloth.
- 7. Do not block any ventilation openings. Install in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.
- 8. Do not install near any heat sources such as radiators, heat registers, stoves, or other apparatus (including amplifiers) that produce heat.
- 9. Do not defeat the safety purpose of the polarized or grounding-type plug. A polarized plug has two blades with one wider than the other. A grounding-type plug has two blades and a third grounding prong. The wide blade or third prong are provided for your safety. If the provided plug does not fit into your outlet, consult an electrician for replacement of the obsolete outlet.
- 10. Protect the power cord from being walked on or pinched particularly at plugs, convenience receptacles, and the point where they exit from the devices.
- 11. Only use attachments and accessories specified by the manufacturer.
- 12. Unplug these devices during lightning storms or when unused for long periods of time.
- 13. To reduce the risk of electric shock or damage to these devices, never handle or touch the devices and power cord if your hands are wet or damp. Do not expose these devices to rain or moisture.
- 14. Refer all servicing to qualified service personnel. Servicing is required when the devices have been damaged in any way, such as power supply cord or plug is damaged, liquid has been spilled, objects have fallen into the devices, the devices have been exposed to rain or moisture, does not operate normally, or has been dropped.
- 15. The devices and their accessories should never be exposed to open flames or excessive heat.

INTRODUCTION

The AC-AEX-RC-HUB is a 12 I/O 1U rack-mountable audio recall centralizer with stereo matrix switching. Designed to receive extended audio over Category Cable, TOSLINK digital audio, and line-level analog stereo signals from up to 12 source devices, the AC-AEX-RC-HUB provides remote audio source signals to a centrally located audio distribution system, such as an audio matrix or multi-zone amplifier, with a maximum distance of up to 130 meters (426 feet).

The diagram below shows the basic application of the AC-AEX-RC-HUB. The audio path can either come from the audio sources directly, or from a separate output (non-HDMI) like the AC-AEX-T as shown below.



Compatible Devices

AC-AEX-T (sold separately)

The AVPro Edge AC-AEX-T is a digital/analog audio transmitter that extends stereo signals over a Category cable via AVPro Edge's exclusive AEX technology. The AC-AEX-T is powered remotely via PoC (Power over Cable) when connected to the AC-AEX-RC-HUB or AC-AEX-R. Ideal for sending audio from a source device (such as a display, record player, or local auxiliary input) located in a separate zone back to a centrally located audio distribution system.





PRODUCT OVERVIEW

Box Contents

- (1x) AC-AEX-RC-HUB Audio Centralizer
- (2x) 1U Rack Mounting Brackets (pre-assembled)
- (1x) 3-Pin Terminal Block Connector
- (4x) Mounting Feet
- (4x) Mounting Feet Screws
- (1x) Ground Wire
- (1x) Power Supply

Technical Specifications

Audio	
Analog Input Voltage	0.8 Vrms, 2.3 Vpp
Analog Output Voltage	1 Vrms, 2.828 Vpp
Digital	2-Channel PCM
Supported Sample Rates	32 kHz, 44.1 kHz, 48 kHz, 88.2 kHz, 96 kHz, 176 kHz, 192 kHz
Latency	30ms
Mute	Available on all outputs
Audio Inputs	
AEX Audio	8
RCA	4
Digital (TOSLINK)	4
Audio Outputs	
AEX Audio	0
RCA	12
Digital (TOSLINK)	12
Control	
Interfaces	RS-232, IP/LAN
Power	
Total Power Consumption	24 Watts Maximum
DC Power	DC 12V 2A
Dimensions	
Height x Width x Depth	Millimeters: 44.45 x 444.5 x 234.95
(Standalone Unit)	Inches: 1.75 x 17.5 x 9.25
Height x Width x Depth	Millimeters: 127 x 571.5 x 381
(Packaged Unit)	Inches: 5 x 22.5 x 15
Weight (Standalone Unit)	6.6 lbs. (2.99 kg)
Weight	$9 \ln (4.08 \text{ kg})$
(Packaged Unit)	5 IDS. (4.00 KG)
Rack Space	
Huck opuce	10



Front and Rear Panels

Front Panel





INSTALLATION

Rack Mounts

The AC-AEX-RC-HUB can be mounted in a 1U rack-style enclosure and is compatible with all standard 19inch rack mounts. The (2x) mounting brackets are pre-assembled to the unit for quick installation.

- 1 Align the holes on the mounting brackets with the holes on both sides of the rack.
- 2 Attach the mounting brackets to the rack with rack screws (not included).



Mounting Feet Assembly

The (4x) mounting feet can be assembled to the AC-AEX-RC-HUB with the (4x) provided mounting screws.

- 1 Align the holes on the mounting feet with the holes underneath the AC-AEX-RC-HUB.
- 2 Attach the mounting feet to the AC-AEX-RC-HUB with the provided screws.





Grounding Cable

Use a screwdriver to attach the yellow grounding cable to the pre-installed screw on the back of the unit, then attach the other end to a suitable grounded object.



FRONT PANEL CONTROL



- 1 *Left* and *Right Input* buttons select the desired input, indicated by a blue LED under the port number.
- 2 *Left* and *Right Output* buttons select the desired output, indicated by a blue LED above the port number.
- *3 OK* button enters the configuration mode and confirms the selected inputs and outputs.
- 4 ESC button exits configuration mode.

View Input/Output Mapping

Use the front panel *Input Left* and *Right* buttons to navigate the blue LED to the desired input's port number. Output LEDs mapped to the selected input will then light up.

Configure Mode

Press the *OK* button, this will light up one of the input LEDs and all output indicators will pulse on, followed by a blinking output LED. Press the *Left* and *Right Input* buttons to navigate the blue LED to the desired input. Next, press the *Left* and *Right Output* buttons to navigate the blue LED to the desired output. Press the *OK* button again to map the selected input to the selected output. Mapping is confirmed by a pulse from all output LEDs. The process is repeated until all inputs and outputs are mapped as desired, or the *ESC* button is pressed. Mapping can be checked outside of configuration mode.



WIRING AND CONNECTIONS

Audio Connections

AVPro Edge recommends using shielded RCA interconnected cabling between the AC-AEX-RC-HUB and the connected analog devices to maintain a high level of audio performance.

The diagram below shows the audio connections of the AC-AEX-RC-HUB.





RS-232 Control

The RS-232 control port located in the top right corner on the rear panel is used to communicate with the AC-AEX-RC-HUB via a computer or third-party control system.



RS-232 Port

Wiring for this port uses a 3-pin terminal block connector to DB9 where only pins 2, 3, and 5 are used. If the control devices do not have a DB9 port, a USB to DB9 adapter may be required.



For RS-232 control, use a null modem serial cable adapter and set the serial communications to: Baud: 57600, no parity, 8 data bits, and 1 stop bit, with no handshaking.

Add a carriage return (Enter key) after each command when using direct commands. The unified command list (ASCII) can be located <u>here</u>.

LAN Wiring

The IP control port located in the bottom right corner on the rear panel is used to communicate with the AC-AEX-RC-HUB via a LAN, router, or third-party control system processor.

For TCP/IP control, commands use Telnet Port 23.



Network Port

The recommended termination is based on TIA/EIA T568A or T568B standards for the wiring of the twisted pair cables:





INITIAL SETUP

Make the physical connections to the input and output devices using the following steps below. For initial setup, it is recommended to connect the AC-AEX-RC-HUB to a LAN (Local Area Network) using a control PC on the same network once all the physical connections are made, followed by accessing the Web UI and checking for any firmware updates to the unit.

Connecting the Devices

1 Connect the audio source devices to the audio inputs on the back of the unit.

PEEEO	$\bigcirc \square \bigcirc$	$\langle \circ \rangle$						
	$\bigcirc \square \bigcirc$	000	$\bigcirc \square \bigcirc$	$\bigcirc \Box \bigcirc$	$\bigcirc \Box \bigcirc$	$\bigcirc \Box \bigcirc$	$\bigcirc \Box \bigcirc$	0

AEX Inputs Analog or Digital Inputs

2 Connect the audio output devices to the audio outputs on the back of the unit.

	0_00_0	0_0	000	2
	$\bigcirc \Box \bigcirc \bigcirc \Box \bigcirc \bigcirc \Box \bigcirc$	$\bigcirc \square \bigcirc$	000)

Analog or Digital Outputs

3 Connect the power port on the back of the unit to a suitable power source with the supplied power cable.

000	000	000	000	000	000	000	
$\bigcirc \Box \bigcirc$							

DC 12V Power Supply

4 Connect the NETWORK port on the back of the unit to a LAN, router, or third-party control system.

	000	000	000	000	000	000	000	0 🗋 📖	10
	$\bigcirc \square \bigcirc$	0							
u <u>k</u>								Networ	k Port

....

Locating the IP Address

The default IP setting is DHCP mode, an IP address will automatically be assigned to the unit by the DHCP server. Use a PC on the same network to locate the unit's IP address, then enter it into a web browser (such as Chrome or Edge) to access the unit's Web UI. Once connected, you can use the Web UI to assign a static IP address. If there is no DHCP server on the network, the unit's IP address can also be located by connecting to the RS-232 port on the back of the unit and sending serial commands using the API. For more information, see the $\frac{RS-232 \ Control}{P}$ page.



Accessing the Web UI

The AC-AEX-RC-HUB features the built-in AVPro Edge User Interface (AEUI) and can be accessed through a web browser for configuration and control. For initial setup, it is recommended to connect the AC-AEX-RC-HUB to a local area network (LAN) with a computer on the same network to access the built-in Web UI and check for any firmware updates to the unit.

OTA Cloud Services

Firmware updates to the unit can be performed OTA (Over-the-Air) by enabling the *Cloud Services* setting on the Web UI. This allows the unit to search the Cloud for the latest versions of firmware. If a newer version is detected that what is currently installed on the unit, a dialog box will prompt the new update is available from the Web UI.

1 Enter the unit's IP address into a Chrome or Edge web browser to access the unit's Web UI.



2 Navigate to the *System* tab page.



3 In the *Cloud Services* section, review the *Privacy Policy* and *Terms of Use*, then check both boxes and select the *Enable Cloud Services* toggle setting.



This is a required step to enable the unit to perform OTA firmware updates.



/ IMPORTANT:

4 In the *Hardware* section, select the *Update Firmware* button. The unit will now check the Cloud for available firmware updates.

Hardware				
мси↑	Version			
MAIN MCU	1.00			
NET MCU	1.05			
MAIN FPGA	3.16			
SPHE1 AUD	1.60			
SPHE2 AUD	1.60			
UPDATE FIRMWARE	FACTORY RESET			
REBOOT				

5 If the unit is already installed with the latest version of firmware, a notification window will prompt the message "No update available!" at the top of the page.



6 If a newer version of firmware is detected from the Cloud, a notification window will prompt the message "New firmware update is available!". Select the *Update* button.



7 The unit's new firmware file will automatically populate into the *File input* field from the Cloud. Select the *Upload* button.



8 From this screen, newer versions of firmware can be viewed before they are installed. Select the *Upgrade* button. The unit will now begin installing the latest versions of firmware. DO NOT refresh the webpage or power off the unit during the update.





- 9 Once the progress bar reaches 100%, select the *Close* button and refresh the webpage.
- 10 The unit will automatically reboot once the firmware updates are complete. After the unit reboots, refresh the webpage to verify that the firmware update was successful.



NAVIGATING THE WEB UI

The AC-AEX-RC-HUB features the built-in AVPro Edge User Interface (AEUI) and can be accessed through a web browser for configuration and control. Different tools and settings can be selected from the tab pages located on the navigation menu column on the left side of the screen.

1	* HHH- 4CADIACHE * +					
-	⊕ ⊕ Ø A hij 1982 N& 1228 (111)					
23			AV Pro≊	n.ui		AC-AEX-RC-HUB-2
-	III Matrix	STEREO AUDIO				
4	System	IN 1		OUTP	uts	
	Console	IN 2	OUT 1	OUT 2	OUT 3	OUT 4
			OUT 5	OUT 6	OUT 7	OUT 8
		IN 5	e TUO	OUT 10 N 10	OUT 11	OUT 12
		IN 0 :				
		IN 7				
		IN 9				
	● 2022					

- 1 Enter the unit's IP address into a web browser, such as Chrome or Edge, to access the Web UI.
- 2 To hide the navigation menu, select the *hamburger menu* icon **E**.
- 3 To hide the navigation menu text and show only the menu icons, select the *left arrow* icon **C**.
- **4** To navigate through the different pages, select the individual *tab pages* from the navigation menu. This will highlight the tab page in green to indicate the currently selected page.





Matrix

The **Matrix** page layout consists of the **Stereo Audio** *Inputs* column on the left and the *Outputs* grid on the right. Each *Input* and *Output* can be individually selected to route the input audio signals to the outputs.

≡	<		A	Pro 🕬 🖬 ui			AC-AEX-RC-HUB-2
	Matrix						
*	I/O Config	STEREO AUDIO					
•	System	IN 1		OUTF	PUTS		
2	Console	IN 2	OUT 1	OUT 2	OUT 3	OUT 4	
		IN 3	OUT 5	OUT 6	OUT 7	OUT 8	
		IN 4					
		IN 5	OUT 9	OUT 10	OUT 11	OUT 12	
		IN 6				N 12	
		IN 7					
		IN 8					
		IN 9					
		IN 10					
		IN 11					
		IN 12					
© 202	22						

Matrix Switching

1 From the *Inputs* column, select the desired input. This will highlight the input with a green text to indicate the selection was made.

	Matrix	
	I/O Confia	STEREO AUDIO
, 	Quatara	IN 1
*	System	IN 2 O
>-	Console	
		IN 3
		IN 4

2 From the *Outputs* grid, select the desired output(s) to route the selected input to. This will highlight the output(s) with a green border to indicate the selection was made.

	Matrix					
4	I/O Config	STEREO AUDIO				
\$	System	IN 1		OUTF	PUTS	
	Console	IN 2	OUT 1 ⊮1	OUT 2 ⊮1	OUT 3	OUT 4 N 4
		IN 3	OUT 5	OUT 6	OUT 7	OUT 8
		IN 4	IN 5	IN 6		
		IN 5	OUT 9	OUT 10	OUT 11	OUT 12
			IN 9	IN 10		
		IN 6				

3 The selected input's audio signals are now routed to the selected output(s).



I/O Config

The **I/O Config** tab page features tools and settings for configuring the audio inputs and outputs.



Stereo Audio Input Settings

1	Port	Shows the audio input port number.
2	Туре	Shows the audio input connection type.
3	Label	Select the text field to enter a custom name for the input. (Limit of 15 characters)
4	Enabled	Select the toggle switch to enable or disable the audio input.
5	Volume	Adjust the volume by using the slider bar or entering a value (0~100) in the text field.

Stereo Audio Output Settings



1	Port	Shows the audio output port number.
2	Label	Select the text field to enter in a custom name for the output. (Limit of 15 characters)
3	Enabled	Select the toggle switch to enable or disable the audio output.
4	Muted	Select the toggle switch to mute or unmute the audio output.
5	Volume	Adjust the volume by using the slider bar or entering a value (0~100) in the text field.
6	Output Following	Select the output following mode (source, volume, or both).
7	EQ	Select to view the outputs Audio Configuration settings.



Output Following

This setting allows an output to mirror, or "follow", the same operation as another output. It can also be used to create groups of outputs that will continually share the same input source, output volume level, or both. Changes to a followed output will automatically update any outputs when this setting is enabled.

III Mate								
	tix .	Part	Later	Enabled	-	Vitare	Output Following	
e 100	Contig		OUT 1		•	100		动
Dysh	åem.		олт 2		•	100		₽
Cons	sole		0/13 5/15		•-	100	Volume Only Source and Volume	÷

Source Only	Matrix to the same input as the selected followed output.
Volume Only	Set volume equivalent to the selected following output, including if the followed output is muted.
Source and Volume	Matrix to the same input and set volume equivalent to the selected followed output.

Once selected, an additional drop-down menu is provided to match the output it will follow.

=	٠			A	VPro:	ssui			AC-AE	K-RC-HUB-2
=	Mattx	Part	Liter	Enabled	Mater		Volume	Output	Fationing	
	VO Config		OUT 1					Source and Vokame	• 0/12	- 12
•	System		OUT 2		٠	100		•	• 0// 3 0// 4	动
6			OUT 3		•	100		•	• 0/TS	12
			OUT 4		•-	100		•	- OUT 6	动
		5	OUT 5	-	٠	100		•	• OUT 8	, sž

NOTE:

Once an output is set to follow another output, you will lose the ability to adjust either the input source or volume for that output until *Output Following* is disabled.



Audio Configuration

	Audio Configuratio	on: OUT 1	OFF
1_	EQ OFF	•	Classical
	60 170		Headphone
	+12		Hall
_			Live
2	0		Рор
	-12		Rock
_	0 0		Vocal
3	Balance U	L R	
		CLOSE	•
1	EQ	The dropdown menu contains a list of applied to change the frequency response	several preset equalizer settings that can be
		NOTE: EQ SETTINGS WILL ONLY A	PPLY TO ANALOG OUTPUTS
		TOSLINK audio output is u	naffected by EQ settings.
2	Prequency	Graphic equalizer showing the individu	al frequency bands of the output's audio.
		NOTE: This graphic equalizer is the individual audio freq to it.	only intended to be used as a visual reference of uency gains. Manual adjustments cannot be made
3	B Balance	Adjust the Left and Right volume by u	sing the slider bar or entering a value
		(-10 to +10) in the text field.	
		NOTE: -10 is balanced left, 0 is	balanced, and +10 is balanced right.



System

IP Settings



1	Host Name	Select the text field to enter a custom name for the unit. The default shows the unit model number.
2	Model Name	Shows the unit's AVPro Edge model number.
3	Serial Number	Shows the unit's unique serial number.
4	MAC Address	Shows the unit's unique MAC address.
5	IP Assignment	Select the dropdown menu to set the unit's IP mode to <i>DHCP</i> (default) or <i>Manual (Static IP)</i> , then select the <i>Apply</i> button.
6	IP Address	Shows the unit's IP address.
7	Subnet Mask	Shows the unit's subnet mask.
8	Gateway	Shows the unit's default gateway.
9	Primary DNS	Shows the unit's primary domain name server.
10	Secondary DNS	Shows the unit's secondary domain name server.



IP Control

IP Control	I	
Enable	-	
Port	23	
	APPLY	
2	Enable	Select the toggle switch to enable or disable IP/TCP control.
3	Port	Select the text field to set the Telnet port. The default is Telnet port 23.

Admin Web Interface



Select the *Secure* toggle switch to enable (green) or disable (red). When enabled, the username and password can be changed.

Admin Web Inte	erface	
Secure		
Username	admin	
Password		Ø
Confirm password	•••••	Ø
	APPLY	

With the *Admin Web Interface* enabled, the only menu that will be accessible on the Web UI will be the **Matrix** tab page. The rest of the settings will require the *Admin* login.

Default username: *admin* Default password: *admin*



User Web Interface

NOTE:



Select the *Secure* toggle switch to enable (green) or disable (grey). When enabled, the username and password can be changed.

The Admin Web Interface must first be enabled before this setting can be changed.



With the *Admin* and *User Web Interfaces* enabled, no menus will be accessible on the Web UI without first logging in.

Logging in with the *User* credentials, the only menu that will be accessible on the Web UI will be the **Matrix** tab page. The rest of the settings will require the *Admin* login.

Default username: *user* Default password: *user123*



Cloud Services

Cloud Services allows OTA (Over-the-Air) firmware updates to be performed onto the unit. This allows the unit to search the Cloud for the latest versions of firmware, as well as enable third-party remote management services. If *Cloud Services* are disabled, the unit will opt out of any previously enabled services and will not be able to access OTA firmware updates.

NOTE: When updating firmware, some settings and configurations may revert to their original factory default settings and may need to be re-applied after the firmware updates are complete. It is always recommended to back up and save your settings and configurations before updating firmware.

1 Review the *Privacy Policy* and *Terms of Use*, then select both check boxes and select the *Enable Cloud Services* toggle setting.



IMPORTANT: This is a required step to enable the unit to perform OTA firmware updates.

2 If the unit is already installed with the latest version of firmware, a notification window will prompt the message "No update available!" at the top of the page.

	No update available!	CLOSE
--	----------------------	-------

3 If a newer version of firmware is detected from the Cloud, a notification window will prompt the message "New firmware update is available!". Select the *Update* button.



4 The unit's new firmware file will automatically populate into the *File input* field from the Cloud. Select the *Upload* button.





5 From this screen, newer versions of firmware can be viewed before they are installed. Select the *Upgrade* button. The unit will now begin installing the latest versions of firmware. DO NOT refresh the webpage or power off the unit during the update.

	Update Firmware
Q	File input firmware fwm (17.8 MB)
F	Main v2.30
×	Input v1.17
►	Output v2.10
►	Pnl v2.01
►	FPGAv2.30
×	SPHE8017 v1.60
×	✓ DSP v0.08
F	VET v1.09
	UPGRADE CLOSE

- 6 Once the progress bar reaches 100%, select the *Close* button and refresh the webpage.
- 7 The unit will automatically reboot once the firmware updates are complete. After the unit reboots, refresh the webpage to verify that the firmware update was successful.

Hardware	
МСИ	Version
MAIN MCU	0.22
NET MCU	1.04
MAIN FPGA	3.16
SPHE1 AUD	1.60
SPHE2 AUD	1.60
UPDATE FIRMWARE	FACTORY RESET REBOOT

Hardware

This section shows the unit's current firmware versions and provides options for updating firmware, factory resetting the unit, and rebooting the unit.



Console

The Web UI features a built-in command console that allows API commands to be sent directly to the unit.

Com	mand	List
-----	------	------

Command	Action	
Н	Неір	
STA	Show global system status	
SET RST	Reset to factory defaults	
SET RBT	System reset to reboot	
SET LAN RBT	Set LAN MCU reset to reboot	
SET ADDR xx	Set System Address to xx {xx=[00-99](00=single)}	
SET BAUDR x	Set System Baudrate to x {x=[0~5] (0=9600, 1=14400, 2=19200, 3=38400, 4=57600, 5=115200)}	
GET ADDR	Get System Address	
GET STA	Get System Status	
GET CONFIG	Get System Configuration	
GET BAUDR	Get System Baudrate	
Input Setup Commands		
SET INx EN/DIS	Set Audio Input Enable/Disable {x=[0-12](0=all)}	
SET INx VOLy	Set Audio Input Volume Adjustment {x=[0-12](0=all), y=-50~+50}	
GET INx EN	Get Audio Input Enable/Disable {x=[0~12](0=all)}	
GET INx VOL	Get Audio Input Volume Adjustment {x=[0~12](0=all)}	
GET INx SIG STA	Get Input x Signal Status {x=[0~12](0=all)}	
Output Setup Commands		
SET OUTx EN/DIS	Set Audio Output Enable/Disable {x=[0~12](0=all)}	
SET OUTx AS IN y	Set Audio Output x to Input y {x=[0~12] (0=all), y=[1~12]}	
SET OUTx FOLLOW y OUTz	Set Audio Output x follow settings {x= [0~12] (0=all[excluding self])} Follow Modes 0=None, 1=Source, 2=Volume, 3=Source+Volume If Follow Mode ! 0, then OUTz is the output that will be followed	
SET OUTX MUTE/UNMUTE	Set Audio Output Mute/Unmute {x=[1~12](0=all)}	
SET OUTx VOL y	Set Output x EQ-Audio Volume Level y {x=[0~12](0=all), y=[0~100]}	
SET OUTx VOL + y	Increase Output x Volume by y {x=[1~12], y=[1~100, optional default 1]}	
SET OUTx VOL – y	Decrease Output x Volume by y $\{x=[1\sim 12], y=[1\sim 100, optional default 1]\}$	
SET OUTx BAL + y	Increase Output x Balance by y {x=[1~12], y=[1~100, optional default 1]}	
SET OUTx BAL - y	Decrease Output x Balance by y {x=[1~12], y=[1~100, optional default 1]}	
SET OUTx EQ y	Set Output x Audio Volume EQ Mode y {x=[0~12](0=all), y=[0~7] (0=Off, 1=Classical, 2=Headphone, 3=Hall, 4=Live, 5=Pop, 6=Rock, 7=Vocal)}	
GET OUTx EN	Get Audio Output Enable/Disable Status {x=[0~12](0=all)}	
GET OUTx AS	Get Output x Audio Route {x=[0~12](0=all)}	
GET OUTx FOLLOW	Get Audio Output x follow settings {x=[0~12](0=all[excluding self])} Follow Modes 0=None, 1=Source, 2=Volume, 3=Source+Volume If Follow Mode ! 0, then OUTz is the output that will be followed	



GET OUTX MUTE	Get Audio Output Mute/Unmute {x=[0~12](0=all)}
GET OUTx VOL	Get Output x EQ-Audio Volume Level {x=[0~12](0=all)}
GET OUTx EQ	Get Output x Audio Volume EQ Mode Status {x=[0~12](0=all)}
GET OUTx BAL	Get Output x Balance {x=[0~12](0=all),
	y=[0~20, Left=0, Right=20, Balanced=10]}
Network Setup Commands	
SET RIP xxx.xxx.xxx	Set Route IP Address to xxx.xxx.xxx (xxx=[000~255])
SET HIP xxx.xxx.xxx	Set Host IP Address to xxx.xxx.xxx (xxx=[000~255])
SET NMK xxx.xxx.xxx	Set Net Mask to xxx.xxx.xxx (xxx=[000~255])
SET TIP zzzz	Set TCP/IP Port to zzzz (zzzz=[0001~9999])
SET DHCP y	Set DHCP {y=[0~1](0=Dis,1=Enable)}

Get Host IP Address

Get Net Mask

Get TCP/IP Port

Get DHCP Status

Get MAC Address



GET HIP

GET NMK

GET DHCP

GET MAC

GET TIP

TROUBLESHOOTING

- Verify Power Check that the power supply is properly connected and on an active circuit. Press the OK button on the front panel, this should illuminate the Input/Output LEDs.
- Verify Connections Check that all cables are securely connected and properly terminated.
- Verify Current Versions Check if are any firmware/software/driver updates available for the devices.
- Good Indicator Lights, but No Sound Verify the signal being sent is compatible with the connected devices in the signal chain. Ensure the device's volume level is properly adjusted and not set to mute. If a signal is present from the input source, the selected output(s) will have a visible red optical light that can be seen from the TOSLINK port.
- Static, Buzzing, or Humming Noises Use shielded RCA cabling between the AC-AEX-RC-HUB and the connected analog devices to maintain a high level of audio performance. Ground the matrix to the conducting parts (equipment rack, mounting devices, truss systems, electrical switchboards, metal electrical conduits, etc.) This technique ensures all the equipment in an electrical system will use the same reference value for their signals and reduces the possibility of a ground loop, which can result in a shift in video signals and mains frequencies to exhibit a buzzing or humming noise in audio systems.

MAINTENANCE

To ensure reliable operation of this product as well as protecting the safety of any person using or

- handling this device while powered, please observe the following instructions.
- Use the power supplies provided. If an alternate supply is required, check voltage, polarity and that it has sufficient power to supply the device it is connected to.
- Do not operate these products outside the specified temperature and humidity range given in the above specifications.
- Ensure there is adequate ventilation to allow this product to operate efficiently.
- Repair of the equipment should only be carried out by qualified professionals as these products contain sensitive components that may be damaged by any mistreatment.
- Only use this product in a dry environment. Do not allow any liquids or harmful chemicals to come into contact with these products.
- Clean this unit with a soft, dry cloth. Never use alcohol, paint thinner or benzene to clean this unit.

DAMAGE REQUIRING SERVICE

The unit should be serviced by qualified service personnel if:

- The DC power supply cord or AC adapter has been damaged
- Objects or liquids have gotten into the unit



- The unit has been exposed to rain
- The unit does not operate normally or exhibits a marked change in performance
- The unit has been dropped or the housing damaged

SUPPORT

Should you experience any problems while using this product, first, refer to the Troubleshooting section of this manual before contacting Technical Support. When calling, the following information should be provided:

- Product name and model number
- Product serial number
- Details of the issue and any conditions under which the issue is occurring
- Clean this unit with a soft, dry cloth. Never use alcohol, paint thinner or benzene to clean this unit.

WARRANTY

The Basics

AVPro Edge warranties its products that are purchased from all Authorized AVPro Edge Resellers or direct purchases. Products are guaranteed to be free from manufacturing defects and of sound physical and electronic condition.

AVPro Edge has developed a warranty that anyone can get behind. We really wanted to take all the "red tape" out of a warranty and just make is simple. Our 10 YEAR NO BS warranty hinges on 3 elements.

- If you are having trouble, call us. We will attempt to troubleshoot your issue over the phone.
- If it's broken, we will replace it in advance on our dime and we'll also cover the return shipping. Repair is an option too, but it's YOUR call.
- We know you know what you are doing. We will not make you go through unnecessary steps to troubleshoot an extender...

Coverage Details

AVPro Edge will replace or repair (at the customer's choosing) a defective product. If the product is out of stock or on back order it can either be replaced with a comparable product of equal value/feature set (if available) or repair.

Your warranty begins at receipt of product (as confirmed by shipping firm tracking). If tracking information is unavailable for any reason, the warranty will commence 30 ARO (After Receipt of Order). The coverage continues for 10 years.

Red Tape

AVPro Edge is not responsible for untraceable purchases or those that were made outside of an authorized channel.



If we conclude that a product or serial number has been tampered with as identified by warranty seal or physical examination the warranty will be void. Additionally, excessive physical damage (beyond normal wear & tear) the warranty may be voided or prorated based on the extent of the damage as examined by an AVPro Edge representative.

Damage caused by "acts of God" are not covered. They can include natural disasters, power surges, storms, earthquakes,

tornadoes, sink holes, typhoons, tidal waves, hurricanes, or any other uncontrollable event related to nature.

Damage caused by incorrect installation will not be covered. Incorrect power supply, inadequate cooling, improper cabling, inadequate protection, static discharge are examples of this.

Products installed or sold by a third party to AVPro Edge will be serviced by the Authorized AVPro Edge Reseller. Accessories (IR Cables, RS-232, Power Supplies, etc.) are not included in the warranty. We will make every acceptable effort to source and supply replacements for defective accessories at a discounted rate as needed.

Obtaining an RMA

Dealers, Re-sellers, and Installers can request an RMA from AVPro Edge Tech Support Rep or their Sales Engineer.

You may also email <u>support@avproedge.com</u> or fill out the general contact form at <u>avproedge.com/contact</u>

End users may not request an RMA directly from AVPro Edge and will be referred to a Dealer, Re-seller, or Installer.

Shipping

For USA (not including Alaska and Hawaii). Shipping is covered on advanced replacements for FedEx Ground (some expressed exceptions may apply). Defective product return shipping is covered by AVPro Edge using an emailed return label. Item must be returned within 30 days of receipt of replacement product, after 30 days, the customer will be billed. Other return shipping methods will not be covered.

For International (and Alaska and Hawaii) return shipping costs will be the responsibility of the returnee. Once the unit is scanned for return shipping AVPro Edge will ship a new unit for replacement.

Limitation on Liability

The maximum liability of AVPro Global Holdings LLC under this limited warranty shall not exceed the actual purchase price paid for the product. AVPro Global Holdings LLC is not responsible for direct, special, incidental, or consequential damages resulting from any breach of warranty or condition, or under any other legal theory to the maximum extent permitted by law. Taxes, Duties, VAT, and freight forwarding service charges are not covered or paid for by this warranty.

Obsolescence or incompatibility with newly invented technologies (after manufacture of product) is not covered by this warranty.

Obsolescence is defined as:



"Peripherals are rendered obsolete when current technology does not support product repair or remanufacture. Obsolete products cannot be re-manufactured because advanced technologies supersede original product manufacturer capabilities. Because of performance, price and functionality issues, product redevelopment is not an option."

Discontinued or out of production items will be credited at fair market value towards a current product of equal or comparable capabilities and cost. Fair market value is determined by AVPro Edge.

Exclusive Remedy

To the maximum extent permitted by law, this limited warranty and the remedies set forth above are exclusive and in lieu of all other warranties, remedies, and conditions, whether oral or written, express or implied. To the maximum extent permitted by law, AVPro Global Holdings LLC specifically disclaims any and all implied warranties, including, without limitation, warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. If AVPro Global Holdings LLC cannot lawfully disclaim or exclude implied warranties under applicable law, then all implied warranties covering this product, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular burgose, shall apply to this product as provided under applicable law.

This warranty supersedes all other warranties, remedies, and conditions, whether oral or written, express or implied.

